2010

Korte H. Wamsley v. The State of Utah : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal of an order of dismissal on statute of limitation grounds on a petition filed under the Post Conviction Remedies Act. The Court has jurisdiction pursuant to U.C.A. §78A-4-103(2)(j).

ISSUE ON APPEAL AND STANDARD OF REVIEW

DID THE TRIAL COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION WHEN IT DISMISSED THE PETITIONERS CLAIM ON A STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS GROUND WITHOUT DETERMINING IF THERE WAS EVIDENCE OF FACTUAL INNOCENCE AND WHETHER THE INTERESTS OF JUSTICE EXCEPTION TO THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS APPLIED?

Standard of Review: The first standard of review regards the dismissal under the sua sponte motion by the trial court. In the case of Miller v. State, ¶ 6, 2010 UT

App. 25 226 P.3d 743 this Court stated, Whether a trial court properly granted a Rule 12(b)(6) motion to dismiss “is a question of law that we review for correctness, affording the trial court’s decision no deference.” (*Citations omitted*)

The second standard of review regards the interest of justice claim. In *Adams v. State*, ¶ 8, 2005 UT 62, ¶ 8, 123 P.3d 400, the Court ruled that the finding of interest of justice is a legal determination. “Because ‘legal determinations concerning the proper interpretation of [a] statute which grants the trial court discretion are reviewed for correctness,’ we apply a de novo standard here.”

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, AND RULES

U. S. CONSTITUTION

FIFTH AMENDMENT - Rights of Persons

No person shall be held to answer for a capital, or otherwise infamous crime, unless on a presentment or indictment of a Grand Jury, except in cases arising in the land or naval forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger; nor shall any person be subject for the same offence to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb; nor shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor shall private property be taken for public use, without just compensation.

EIGHTH AMENDMENT - Further Guarantees in Criminal Cases

Excessive bail shall not be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual punishments inflicted.

U.S. CODE

28 U.S.C. §2255 Federal Custody; Remedies on Motion Attacking Sentence

A prisoner in custody under sentence of a court established by Act of Congress claiming the right to be released upon the ground that the sentence was imposed in violation of the Constitution or laws of the United States, or that the court was without jurisdiction to impose such sentence, or that the sentence was in excess of the maximum authorized by law, or is otherwise subject to collateral attack, may move the court which imposed the sentence to vacate, set aside or correct the sentence. Unless the motion and the files and records of the case conclusively show that the prisoner is entitled to no relief, the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon the United States attorney, grant a prompt hearing thereon, determine the issues and make findings of fact and conclusions of law with respect thereto. If the court finds that the judgment was rendered without jurisdiction, or that the sentence imposed was not authorized by law or otherwise open to collateral attack, or that there has been such a denial or infringement of the constitutional rights of the prisoner as to render the judgment vulnerable to collateral attack, the court shall vacate and set the judgment aside and shall discharge the prisoner or resentence him or grant a new trial or correct the sentence as may appear appropriate. A court may entertain and determine such motion without requiring the production of the prisoner at the hearing. An appeal may be taken to the court of appeals from the order entered on the motion as from a final judgment on application for a writ of habeas corpus. An application for a writ of habeas corpus in behalf of a prisoner who is authorized to apply for relief by motion pursuant to this section, shall not be entertained if it appears that the applicant has failed to apply for relief, by motion, to the court which sentenced him, or that such court has denied him relief, unless it also appears that the remedy by motion is inadequate or ineffective to test the legality of his detention.

A 1-year period of limitation shall apply to a motion under this section. The limitation period shall run from the latest of -

- (1) the date on which the judgment of conviction becomes final;
- (2) the date on which the impediment to making a motion created by governmental action in violation of the Constitution or laws of the United States is removed, if the movant was prevented from making a motion by such governmental action;
- (3) the date on which the right asserted was initially recognized by the Supreme Court, if that right has been newly recognized by the Supreme Court and made retroactively applicable to cases on collateral review; or

(4) the date on which the facts supporting the claim or claims presented could have been discovered through the exercise of due diligence.

Except as provided in section 408 of the Controlled Substances Act, in all proceedings brought under this section, and any subsequent proceedings on review, the court may appoint counsel, except as provided by a rule promulgated by the Supreme Court pursuant to statutory authority. Appointment of counsel under this section shall be governed by section 3006A of title 18.

A second or successive motion must be certified as provided in section 2244 by a panel of the appropriate court of appeals to contain -

(1) newly discovered evidence that, if proven and viewed in light of the evidence as a whole, would be sufficient to establish by clear and convincing evidence that no reasonable factfinder would have found the movant guilty of the offense; or

(2) a new rule of constitutional law, made retroactive to cases on collateral review by the Supreme Court, that was previously unavailable.

Utah Code Annotated

§76-5-404.1. Sexual abuse of a child -- Aggravated sexual abuse of a child.

See attached Addendum A.

§78B-9-105. Burden of proof.

(1) The petitioner has the burden of pleading and proving by a preponderance of the evidence the facts necessary to entitle the petitioner to relief. The court may not grant relief without determining that the petitioner is entitled to relief under the provisions of this chapter and in light of the entire record, including the record from the criminal case under review.

(2) The respondent has the burden of pleading any ground of preclusion under Section **78B-9-106**, but once a ground has been pled, the petitioner has the burden to disprove its existence by a preponderance of the evidence.

78B-9-107. Statute of limitations for postconviction relief.

(1) A petitioner is entitled to relief only if the petition is filed within one year after the cause of action has accrued.

(2) For purposes of this section, the cause of action accrues on the latest of the

following dates:

(a) the last day for filing an appeal from the entry of the final judgment of conviction, if no appeal is taken;

(b) the entry of the decision of the appellate court which has jurisdiction over the case, if an appeal is taken;

(c) the last day for filing a petition for writ of certiorari in the Utah Supreme Court or the United States Supreme Court, if no petition for writ of certiorari is filed;

(d) the entry of the denial of the petition for writ of certiorari or the entry of the decision on the petition for certiorari review, if a petition for writ of certiorari is filed;

(e) the date on which petitioner knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of evidentiary facts on which the petition is based; or

(f) the date on which the new rule described in Subsection **78B-9-104(1)(f)** is established.

(3) The limitations period is tolled for any period during which the petitioner was prevented from filing a petition due to state action in violation of the United States Constitution, or due to physical or mental incapacity. The petitioner has the burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the petitioner is entitled to relief under this Subsection (3).

(4) The statute of limitations is tolled during the pendency of the outcome of a petition asserting:

(a) exoneration through DNA testing under Section **78B-9-303**; or

(b) factual innocence under Section **78B-9-401**.

(5) Sections **77-19-8**, **78B-2-104**, and **78B-2-111** do not extend the limitations period established in this section.

78B-9-402. Petition for determination of factual innocence -- Sufficient allegations -- Notification of victim.

(1) A person who has been convicted of a felony offense may petition the district court in the county in which the person was convicted for a hearing to establish that the person is factually innocent of the crime or crimes of which the person was convicted.

(2) (a) The petition shall contain an assertion of factual innocence under oath by the petitioner, and shall aver, with supporting affidavits or other credible documents, that:

(i) newly discovered material evidence exists that, if credible, establishes that the petitioner is factually innocent;

(ii) the specific evidence identified by the petitioner in the petition establishes innocence;

(iii) the material evidence is not merely cumulative of evidence that was known;
(iv) the material evidence is not merely impeachment evidence; and
(v) viewed with all the other evidence, the newly discovered evidence demonstrates that the petitioner is factually innocent.

(b) The court shall review the petition in accordance with the procedures in Subsection (9)(b), and make a finding that the petition has satisfied the requirements of Subsection (2)(a). If the court finds the petition does not meet all the requirements of Subsection (2)(a), it shall dismiss the petition without prejudice and send notice of the dismissal to the petitioner and the attorney general.

(3) (a) The petition shall also contain an averment that:

(i) neither the petitioner nor petitioner's counsel knew of the evidence at the time of trial or sentencing or in time to include the evidence in any previously filed post-trial motion or postconviction motion, and the evidence could not have been discovered by the petitioner or the petitioner's counsel through the exercise of reasonable diligence; or

(ii) a court has found ineffective assistance of counsel for failing to exercise reasonable diligence in uncovering the evidence.

(b) Upon entry of a finding that the petition is sufficient under Subsection (2)(a), the court shall then review the petition to determine if Subsection (3)(a) has been satisfied. If the court finds that the requirements of Subsection (3)(a) have not been satisfied, it may dismiss the petition without prejudice and give notice to the petitioner and the attorney general of the dismissal, or the court may enter a finding that based upon the strength of the petition, the requirements of Subsection (3)(a) are waived in the interest of justice.

(4) If the conviction for which the petitioner asserts factual innocence was based upon a plea of guilty, the petition shall contain the specific nature and content of the evidence that establishes factual innocence. The court shall review the evidence and may dismiss the petition at any time in the course of the proceedings, if the court finds that the evidence of factual innocence relies solely upon the recantation of testimony or prior statements made by a witness against the petitioner, and the recantation appears to the court to be equivocal or self-serving.

(5) A person who has already obtained postconviction relief that vacated or reversed the person's conviction or sentence may also file a petition under this part in the same manner and form as described above, if no retrial or appeal regarding this offense is pending.

(6) If some or all of the evidence alleged to be exonerating is biological evidence subject to DNA testing, the petitioner shall seek DNA testing pursuant to Section **78B-9-301**.

(7) Except as provided in Subsection (9), the petition shall be in compliance with and governed by Rule 65C, Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, and shall include the underlying criminal case number.

(8) After a petition is filed under this section, prosecutors, law enforcement officers, and crime laboratory personnel shall cooperate in preserving evidence and in determining the sufficiency of the chain of custody of the evidence which is the subject of the petition.

(9) (a) A person who files a petition under this section shall serve notice of the petition and a copy of the petition upon the office of the prosecutor who obtained the conviction and upon the Utah attorney general.

(b) The assigned judge shall conduct an initial review of the petition. If it is apparent to the court that the petitioner is either merely relitigating facts, issues, or evidence presented in previous proceedings or presenting issues that appear frivolous or speculative on their face, the court shall dismiss the petition, state the basis for the dismissal, and serve notice of dismissal upon the petitioner and the attorney general. If, upon completion of the initial review, the court does not dismiss the petition, it shall order the attorney general to file a response to the petition. The attorney general shall, within 30 days after receipt of the court's order, or within any additional period of time the court allows, answer or otherwise respond to all proceedings initiated under this part.

(c) After the time for response by the attorney general under Subsection (9)(b) has passed, the court shall order a hearing if it finds the petition meets the requirements of Subsections (2) and (3) and finds there is a bona fide and compelling issue of factual innocence regarding the charges of which the petitioner was convicted. No bona fide and compelling issue of factual innocence exists if the petitioner is merely relitigating facts, issues, or evidence presented in a previous proceeding or if the petitioner is unable to identify with sufficient specificity the nature and reliability of the newly discovered evidence that establishes the petitioner's factual innocence.

(d) If the parties stipulate that the evidence establishes that the petitioner is factually innocent, the court may find the petitioner is factually innocent without holding a hearing.

(10) The court may not grant a petition for a hearing under this part during the period in which criminal proceedings in the matter are pending before any trial or appellate court, unless stipulated to by the parties.

(11) Any victim of a crime that is the subject of a petition under this part, and who has elected to receive notice under Section 77-38-3, shall be notified by the state's attorney of any hearing regarding the petition.

(12) A petition to determine factual innocence under this part, or Part 3, Postconviction Testing of DNA, shall be filed separately from any petition for postconviction relief under Part 1, General Provisions. Separate petitions may be filed simultaneously in the same court.

(13) The procedures governing the filing and adjudication of a petition to determine factual innocence apply to all petitions currently filed or pending and

any new petitions filed on or after the effective date of this amendment.

§78A-4-103. Court of Appeals jurisdiction

(2) The Court of Appeals has appellate jurisdiction, including jurisdiction of interlocutory appeals, over:

(j) cases transferred to the Court of Appeals from the Supreme Court.

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure

Rule 12. Defenses and objections.

(b) How presented. Every defense, in law or fact, to claim for relief in any pleading, whether a claim, counterclaim, cross-claim, or third-party claim, shall be asserted in the responsive pleading thereto if one is required, except that the following defenses may at the option of the pleader be made by motion: (1) lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter, (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person, (3) improper venue, (4) insufficiency of process, (5) insufficiency of service of process, (6) failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, (7) failure to join an indispensable party. A motion making any of these defenses shall be made before pleading if a further pleading is permitted. No defense or objection is waived by being joined with one or more other defenses or objections in a responsive pleading or motion or by further pleading after the denial of such motion or objection. If a pleading sets forth a claim for relief to which the adverse party is not required to serve a responsive pleading, the adverse party may assert at the trial any defense in law or fact to that claim for relief. If, on a motion asserting the defense numbered (6) to dismiss for failure of the pleading to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, matters outside the pleading are presented to and not excluded by the court, the motion shall be treated as one for summary judgment and disposed of as provided in Rule 56, and all parties shall be given reasonable opportunity to present all material made pertinent to such a motion by Rule 56.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal of a dismissal by the trial court of a petition filed under the Post Conviction Remedies Act UCA §78B-9-101 et seq. The trial court, pursuant to a sua sponte motion, dismissed the petition on the grounds that it was time

barred pursuant to the statute of limitations provision of that act. The order was entered on July 14, 2010, and the Petitioner filed a notice of appeal on July 22, 2010.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The Petition was originally charged in September 2005. The Petitioner filed a discovery request for all evidence the State had regarding the charges set forth in the information on September 9, 2005. The discovery request specifically requested any exculpatory evidence in the possession of the State, (which would include any law enforcement entity working for the State). The State produced a quantity of evidence to defense counsel; and upon the advice of his counsel, presumably based upon the evidence received pursuant to his discovery request, the Petitioner then entered a plea of guilty to two counts of sexual abuse of a child a second-degree felony under UCA §76-5-404.1. The Petitioner specifically entered the plea as an *Alford Plea*, pursuant to *North Carolina v. Alford* 400 U.S. 25, 25, 91 S.Ct. 160, 161 (U.S.N.C. 1970), and has maintained his position of innocence steadfastly through the proceedings.

Sometime later, during a collateral juvenile court proceeding, the Petitioner discovered that the State had withheld critical evidence regarding other, similar, allegations made by the alleged victim that could also not be substantiated by any hard evidence. This information sparked the Petitioner to look at other areas of evidence, and he determined that there was significant evidence to persuade a

handwriting expert that the statements supposedly written by the alleged victims were written and signed by the Petitioner's ex-wife. The information revealed in discovery pursuant to this juvenile court proceeding was substantial and would have altered the path of the entire prosecution. The Petitioner would never have pled guilty, and the petitioner believes that the outcome of any trial would have been favorable. It was after this information was made known that the Petitioner filed the action in Post Conviction Remedies which is the subject of this appeal. The trial court received the petition for Post Conviction Remedies and filed a sua sponte motion to dismiss as being time-barred.

This Court first addressed this matter in 2009 in the unpublished opinion of *Wamsley v. State*, 2009 UT App 332, wherein the court reversed the trial courts summary dismissal of the Post Conviction Remedies claim as time barred. The Court remanded for a hearing on the statute of limitation issue.

The matter then went to the trial court on remand, and a hearing was scheduled for June 16, 2010. The trial court in this case set the hearing on a sua sponte notice that the petition for remedies under the Post Conviction Remedies Act was time-barred. (R 536/2) The court then stated that under Utah Code Annotated §78B-9-105 that the burden is on the Petitioner to disprove preclusion by a preponderance of the evidence. Petitioner's counsel then told the court that they had filed a request for discovery in that this was an essential part of the case to establish factual innocence. Petitioner's counsel specifically requested the ability

of a handwriting analyst (George Throckmorton), who they had retained, to examine two documents, which were in the possession of the State, which were the basis of the charge and the impetus for the guilty plea. (R. 536/3)

The trial court then asked if the request for discovery does not go to whether or not it's time-barred, to which the Petitioner answered that is necessary in order to establish the factual innocence, which would establish that the claim was not time-barred. (R. 536/4) The court then asked to hear from respondent's counsel who argued that the Post Conviction Remedies Act had a one-year statute of limitations and that the Petitioner was therefore time-barred by that statute.

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