2010

Korte H. Wamsley v. The State of Utah : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Point I: Wamsley is incorrect when he claims that his post-conviction petition was timely. Wamsley was sentenced on October 10, 2007. Because he did not appeal, his post-conviction action accrued on November 9, 2007, the last day for filing an appeal. This gave him until November 9, 2008, to file his post-conviction petition. But he did not file his petition until June 22, 2009. His petition was therefore over seven months late.

Contrary to Wamsley's claim, his post-conviction cause of action did not begin accruing when he allegedly discovered several documents affecting his daughters' credibility in the fall of 2008. As set forth in the attachments to Wamsley's own petition, Wamsley knew about all of the claims and documents before he was even sentenced. His post-conviction action therefore accrued on the last day on which he could have appealed.

Wamsley is also incorrect when he claims that an alleged *Brady* violation tolled the statute of limitations. As an initial matter, this claim is inadequately briefed and should not be considered. But in any event, the record shows that Wamsley filed this claim more than a year after he had the information at issue. This claim, too, is therefore untimely.

Finally, Wamsley's petition is not timely under any interests of justice exception. Wamsley cannot rely on the old interests of justice exception to the PCRA's statute of limitations, because that exception had been removed from the statute before he filed this petition. Wamsley cannot rely on the interests of justice provision in the Factual Innocence Statute, because that statute is legally and analytically distinct from the PCRA. And Wamsley cannot rely on the equitable tolling doctrine that has been applied by federal courts interpreting the AEDPA, because that statute does not govern the proper interpretation of Utah's Post-Conviction Remedies Act.

Point II: Wamsley is also incorrect when he claims to have filed a factual innocence petition within his post-conviction petition. As noted, factual innocence petitions are legally distinct from post-conviction petitions. But more importantly, the petition at issue here did not comply with the basic requirements set forth by the Factual Innocence Statute.

In any event, even if Wamsley's petition is construed as including a factual innocence petition, the district court still properly dismissed the petition because Wamsley identified no newly discovered evidence proving his factual innocence as defined by the Factual Innocence Statute.

ARGUMENT

Wamsley argues that the district court erred when it dismissed his post-conviction petition on statute of limitations grounds. As set forth below, however, Wamsley's post-conviction petition was untimely under the PCRA, and the district court therefore correctly dismissed it.

Wamsley also argues that his post-conviction petition included an otherwise timely factual innocence petition. But Wamsley has never properly filed a factual innocence petition; and even if he had, it would be barred.

I.

THE DISTRICT COURT CORRECTLY HELD THAT WAMSLEY'S PCRA PETITION WAS TIME-BARRED

Wamsley first argues that his post-conviction petition was timely filed. But this argument is incorrect, because: (A) Wamsley did not file his petition within one year of the date on which his cause of action accrued; (B) Wamsley knew about all of the evidence at issue in his petition before his sentencing; and (C) no interests of justice exception excuses Wamsley's late filing.

A. Wamsley's petition was time-barred.

1. The district court could raise this sua sponte.

As an initial matter, Wamsley is incorrect when he claims that there "is a significant question whether or not the district court" could properly raise the

statute of limitations issue sua sponte. Appt. Br. 15. Under Utah Code Annotated § 78B-9-106(2) (West 2009), “[a]ny court may raise a procedural bar or time bar on its own motion, provided that it gives the parties notice and an opportunity to be heard.” This is precisely what occurred here.

Contrary to Wamsley’s argument, this Court’s decision in *Kell v. State*, 2008 UT 62, ¶ 46, 194 P.3d 913, does not demonstrate that the district court erred. The issue in *Kell* was whether a district court could grant summary judgment on an individual issue when the State had not asked for it. *Id.* at ¶¶ 45-46. The Utah Supreme Court explained that this was improper, because “only parties to the case may define the scope of a summary judgment motion.” *Id.* at ¶ 49. Here, however, the “scope” of this motion is not at issue, because the court’s sua sponte statute of limitations motion encompassed all of Wamsley’s claims. But more importantly, the PCRA expressly authorized the district court to raise the statute of limitations issue. Wamsley is therefore incorrect when he claims that the district court could not raise this issue sua sponte.⁵

⁵ Also, after the court invited both parties to address the timeliness issue, the State argued that all of Wamsley’s claims were untimely. This is not materially different than if the court had required a general response, and the State then raised the time bar on its own.

2. Wamsley's PCRA petition was untimely.

A post-conviction "petitioner is entitled to relief only if the petition is filed within one year after the cause of action has accrued." Utah Code Ann. § 78B-9-107(1) (West 2009). In cases where a defendant did not file a direct appeal, the cause of action accrues on "the last day for filing an appeal from the entry of the final judgment of conviction." *Id.* § 78B-9-107(2)(a). For purposes of an appeal, a defendant must file his notice of appeal within 30 days of the date of final judgment, Utah R. App. P. 4(a), which runs from the date of sentencing in a criminal case. *See State v. Bowers*, 2002 UT 100, ¶ 4, 57 P.3d 1065.

Wamsley was sentenced on October 10, 2007. He therefore had until November 9, 2007, to file his direct appeal. He did not file a direct appeal, however, so he had until November 10, 2008, within which to file a post-conviction petition. Wamsley did not file his post-conviction petition until June 22, 2009. As such, the

district court correctly concluded that his petition was barred by the PCRA's statute of limitations.⁶

B. Wamsley's petition was not timely under the newly discovered evidence subsection.

Wamsley argues that he timely filed his post-conviction petition under the limitations statute's newly discovered evidence provision. Apl't. Br. 14. Under that provision, a post conviction cause of action begins accruing on "the date on which the petitioner knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of evidentiary facts on which the petition is based." Utah Code Annotated § 78B-9-107(2)(e).

This claim should be rejected for two reasons. First, Wamsley inadequately briefed it. Second, if reached, it also fails because Wamsley knew about all of the evidence at issue more than one year before he filed this petition.

⁶ Given this, Wamsley is incorrect when he suggests that the district court abused its discretion when it dismissed his PCRA petition without first allowing him to conduct discovery. Apl't. Br. 12. Discovery is not automatic in a post-conviction action. Instead, discovery is only allowed upon motion from a party and a determination by the court that there is good cause for it. Utah R. Civ. Proc. 65C(m). Here, Wamsley requested discovery only to develop evidence on the merits of his claims. Given this, there was no abuse of discretion where the district court essentially determined that Wamsley would not be allowed to conduct discovery on an untimely claim.

1. This claim is inadequately briefed.

This Court should not address this claim because it is inadequately briefed.

“A brief is inadequate when it merely contains bald citation[s] to authority [without] development of that authority and reasoned analysis based on that authority.”

Smith v. Four Corners Mental Health Ctr., 2003 UT 23, ¶ 46, 70 P.3d 904. “An appellate court is not a depository in which [a party] may dump the burden of argument and research.” *Allen v. Friel*, 2008 UT 56, ¶ 9, 194 P.3d 903. When a party does nothing more than “cursorily” raise an issue, this Court “declines to address” it on appeal. *State v. Arave*, 2009 UT App 278, ¶ 12 n.3, 220 P.3d 182; *see also State v. Green*, 2005 UT 9, ¶ 11, 108 P.3d 710 (“A brief which does not fully identify, analyze, and cite its legal arguments may be disregarded or stricken by the court.”).

After quoting § 78B-9-107(2)(e), Wamsley’s brief does little more than assert, without elaboration or explanation, that his petition “was filed within one year of the discovery of new evidence.” Aplt. Br. 14. Wamsley does not specify what that new evidence was, identify when he first discovered it, explain why it took him so long to discover it, or even argue that his unspecified actions during the undefined intervening period satisfied the “reasonable diligence” requirement of this provision. By omitting these critical details, Wamsley fails to satisfy his burden of showing that he proved to the district court that he filed his petition within one year

of when, with the exercise of reasonable diligence, he could have discovered the evidentiary basis for his claims.

Admittedly, Wamsley provides some additional detail in his Statement of Facts. Aplt. Br. 9-10. There, he alleges that during an unidentified “collateral juvenile court proceeding,” he “discovered that the State had withheld critical evidence regarding other, similar allegations made by the alleged victim that could also not be substantiated by any hard evidence,” and that he had then “determined that there was significant evidence to persuade a handwriting expert that the statements supposedly written by the alleged victims were written and signed by [his] ex-wife.” Aplt. Br. 9-10. But this is not sufficient, because rule 24(a)(9), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, requires a party to adequately brief a claim in the Argument section, rather than scattering the pieces of a claim seriatim throughout the different sections of the brief.

In any event, Wamsley’s fact statement still fails to adequately define his claim. Among others, Wamsley fails to identify what collateral juvenile court proceeding originally prompted his search, what prior allegations (and by which victim) he learned about, whether he knew about those allegations beforehand, what handwritten statements he uncovered, what he had done during the interim,

why he waited until the unidentified juvenile court proceeding to begin looking, and whether he actually knew about those statements beforehand.

In the absence of such detail, the State and this Court are left to guess at the precise contours of Wamsley's argument. Such an approach places the State at an unfair disadvantage, because the State is now forced to respond to arguments that Wamsley has not fully delineated, let alone actually made on appeal. Given that this claim is inadequately briefed, this Court should not address it. *See State v. Honie*, 2002 UT 4, ¶ 67, 57 P.3d 977 (reaffirming that a claim is inadequately briefed unless the appellant "clearly define[s] the issues and provide accompanying argument and authority").

2. In any event, Wamsley's claims are time-barred.

But even if this Court reaches this argument, it should still be rejected. As noted, the statute of limitations accrual date set forth in § 78B-9-107(2)(e) begins on "the date on which the petitioner knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of evidentiary facts on which the petition is based." Utah Code Ann. § 78B-9-107(2)(e).

When making such an argument, the "petitioner has the burden of pleading and proving by a preponderance of the evidence the facts necessary to entitle [him] to relief." Utah Code Ann. § 78B-9-105(1) (West 2009). Once the statute of

limitations is placed at issue, a petitioner “has the burden to disprove its” applicability “by a preponderance of the evidence.” *Id.* § 78B-9-105(2). Thus, Wamsley must prove by a preponderance of the evidence when he discovered the evidence, as well as that, with the exercise of reasonable diligence, he did not and should not have discovered it sooner.

Though unclear from his appellate brief, it appears from the arguments below that Wamsley is arguing that in July 2008, he learned that his ex-wife Kathryn had written his daughters’ original police statements, and that Kathryn had also “forged” the girls’ signatures on those typewritten statements to make it appear that the girls had written them. PCR at 13; 536: 52. Wamsley also appears to be claiming that Kathryn forged a letter that was submitted under Kaitlin’s name at sentencing. PCR at 14. But the record shows that Wamsley knew, or should have known, about both claims more than one year before he filed this petition. This is demonstrated by three different sources.

First, both victims testified at the March 8, 2006, preliminary hearing, which was held 3 1/2 years before Wamsley filed this petition. *See generally* Transcript of Prelim. Hrg. at 12-29 (Kaitlin), 58-72 (Korynne). Wamsley’s counsel specifically referred to Kaitlin’s police statement at that hearing, *id.* at 37, thereby showing that he had already received a copy of it. And during Korynne’s direct examination, the

prosecutor not only referred to her police statement, but also the possibility that her mother had helped her write it. At that hearing, the prosecutor asked Korynne whether she “remember[ed] writing a witness statement *or having [her] mom help [her] write a witness statement.*” *Id.* at 67 (emphasis added). Moreover, the victims’ mother, Kathryn, also testified at the preliminary hearing. And on cross-examination, Wamsley’s counsel questioned her about her role in preparing the girls’ police statements. *Id.* at 101-02. Among others, defense counsel asked her “when” she “type[d] up the statements,” and whether “the statement that they gave” her was “identical” to what they had initialled told her about the abuse. *Id.* Thus, Defendant was clearly aware of this possible claim at least as early as the preliminary hearing.

Second, on July 25, 2007, two years before Wamsley filed his petition, he wrote an email to his attorney, Ron Yengich, which he later attached as Exhibit P to his post-conviction petition. PCR at 207. In that email, Wamsley claimed that his daughters’ police statements had been forged. *Id.* According to Wamsley, “the original letters from the girls were retyped and added to by Kathy to get enough detail for the DA to charge me in the first place.” *Id.* Wamsley also alleged that Kathryn forged Kaitlin’s sentencing letter: “I have had Kaitlins [sic] letter looked at by several people including a child therapist and its very apparent that she (a 15-

year old) did not write it. This letter seems to come from Kathy with Kaitlin's name on it. Kaitlin did not even sign it!" *Id.*

Third, on August 6, 2007, nearly 2 years before he filed his petition, Wamsley's current wife, Suzanne Wamsley, wrote a letter to Yengich, which Wamsley later attached as Exhibit N to his post-conviction petition. PCR at 198. In that letter, Wamsley's wife referred to the girls' police statements, and she also made both forgery claims at issue here. Specifically, she alleged that the "girls' original statements . . . were insufficient to charge [Wamsley] with anything," but that when "Det. Gordon told Kathy this, she asked what he had to have done for it to be a crime, & voila! She locks the girls in a room and types new statements for them." PCR at 198. Suzanne also alleged that Kathryn had forged Kaitlin's sentencing letter: "It also galls us that she blatantly submits a letter for sentencing under Kaitlin's name that is 100% written by her." PCR at 198.

Thus, it is clear from this record — indeed, it is clear just from the attachments to Wamsley's own postconviction petition — that Wamsley was aware of these documents and this potential issue long before he filed his petition. He therefore has not disproven the applicability of the PCRA's statute of limitations by a preponderance of the evidence.

Wamsley is also apparently claiming that he has only recently learned that Kaitlin made allegations of abuse against other people, thereby showing that his petition was timely. But Wamsley's claim again fails for lack of proof. Among others, he has not established when he actually learned about these claims or why he could not have discovered them earlier with the exercise of reasonable diligence.

In any event, the record shows that Wamsley knew that Kaitlin had made other claims of abuse long before he filed his petition. His counsel asked Kaitlin about the other allegations of abuse at the preliminary hearing. *See* Transcript of Prelim. Hrg. at 50-53. And Wamsley's attorney had an investigator looking into the issue; in fact, Wamsley filed a statement with the district court nine months before his plea alleging that his investigator had discovered previous allegations against a babysitter. *See* Wamsley's "Statement Regarding Other False Allegations By the Victim" (Addendum D).

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